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TOWN OF GLASTONBURY 
 

RPGL-2012-07 
 

INSTALLATION OF PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEMS 
AND 

POWER PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
 

ADDENDUM #1 
Dated: 11/9/2011 

 
The proposal due date remains unchanged. 

 
Please be advised that the following addendum has been provided to all offerors: 
 
This Addendum forms a part of the Contract Documents and modifies the original RFP 
Documents.  Offerors shall acknowledge receipt of this Addendum in the space provided on the 
Bid Form. 
 
This Addendum consists of eighteen (18) pages which includes three (3) drawings and one (1) 
aerial photo. 
  
QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 
 
1. Question: Will the sign in sheets be available? 
 Answer:  The sign in sheets are included in this addendum (Attachment 1). 
 
2. Question:  Will WPCA site and electrical plans be available? 
 Answer:  Those plans are included in this addendum (Attachment 2). 
 
3. Question:  CEFIA has 250kW maximum size for their grant award. Do you want to use 

this or provide entire load at a different rate? 
 Answer:  It was not anticipated that any of the locations would accommodate a system 

exceeding 250kW in size.  If a system exceeding 250kW is proposed, the analysis and 
proposal shall address that portion of a system exceeding 250kW as a second system, even 
though the “pieces” may share common infrastructure. 

 
4. Question:  Are there any more recent solar studies than the 2006 reports referenced? 

Answer:  The solar studies provided with the RFP are the only ones available to the 
Town. 
 

5. Question:  Do you have locations for access points and equipment locations? 
Answer:  Those points and locations were available for review during the site visits 
conducted on October 27th and November 3rd. 
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6. Question:  Will you be including proof of financial capacity for offerors? 

Answer:  Para. 8.5 of the RFP instructs proposers to include, in Section 5 of their 
proposals, financial information in sufficient detail to allow for evaluation of credit 
worthiness.  No specific format for this information is prescribed. 
 

7. Question:  Are there working time restrictions? 
Answer:  Normal working hours are 7:30 AM to 4:00 PM.  However, alternate work 
hours may be considered and are subject to approval by the owner.  In some instances, 
such as a required electrical outage to schedule a connection, work outside normal 
working hours will be necessary. 

 
8. Question:  Does the CEFIA format for a PPA need to be used? 

Answer:  It is preferred.  If an offeror proposes to use an alternate PPA, the proposal shall 
identify the differences between the CEFIA PPA and the proposed PPA and why the 
offeror feels the change is necessary. 

 
9. Question:  Are there restrictions on fencing/security?  

Answer:  Proposers shall identify in their proposals any fencing/security proposed and 
who shall provide it. 

 
10. Question:  Can trees be cut in the Town Hall – Academy area? 

Answer:  Proposers shall assume trees may not be cut. 
 
11. Question:  Is the Carson property (adjacent to and south of the wastewater treatment 

facility) available for use? 
Answer:  At this time, that property is not available for use.  However, the Town would 
be interested in seeing a pro-forma analysis that would illustrate how use of that property 
would influence the business case, if proposers could provide.  The available land areas 
for the wastewater treatment facility are shown on the Attachment 2 drawing and, also, on 
the aerial photo included with Attachment 2. 
 

12. Question:  Can you provide transformer information for each site? 
Answer:  We do not have information regarding the utility company transformers at each 
location. 

 
13. Question:  Is the “Total Cost” of electricity in Appendix A all inclusive?  Specifically, 

does it include the cost of power and transmission?  Could you also make power bills 
available? 
Answer:  The “Total Cost” of electricity shown is, actually, the transmission, distribution, 
and other fees and assessments cost on the CL&P bill.  The Town purchases the generated 
portion of electricity from a separate vendor and that cost is not included in the Appendix 
A data.  Currently, the Town uses a budget figure of $0.17 per kWh as an “all in” rate for 
the purchase of delivered electricity.  The usage figures included in the Appendix A data 
are actual usage.  Attached are representative bills from CL&P for each of the three 
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facilities.  All bills will be made available to the successful proposer, however, a summary 
of the usage data is included in Appendix A. 
 

14. Question:  Will you include the roof top resource at the high school or any of the other 
schools in Glastonbury? 
Answer:  Those resources are not available for this RFP.  They will be considered for 
follow-on solicitations related to ZRECs and LRECS. 
 

15. Question:  Can you provide the energy usage data in Excel format on your website? 
Answer:   The energy usage data has been posted to the Town website in Excel format. 
 

16. Question:  Can you provide a recent bill for each of the three facilities? 
Answer:   See Q&A #14. 
 

17. Question:  Is the Town open to bid alternatives that would provide a substantial financial 
benefit to the Town? 
Answer:   An RFP format was pursued in order to allow flexibility for offerors to 
develop their proposals within the constraints of the CEFIA program requirements.  The 
Town prefers a PPA with a solar provider and will be receptive to alternative approaches 
that provide value. 

 
 
 

  
 

 
 
 
  
Attachment 1:  Sign-in Sheets 
Attachment 2:  Site and one-line electrical plans for Wastewater Treatment Facility (3 sheets) 
and one aerial photo 
Attachment 3:  Representative utility company bill for each of the three locations 
 

 
 

END OF ADDENDUM NO. 1 
 

Offerors are responsible for acknowledging receipt of the addendum on the submitted bid 
form. 
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